
P:\Plan Commission\Agendas\2015\November 17, 2015 Agenda.doc

AGENDA FOR THE
PLAN COMMISSION

Date and Time: Tuesday, November 17, 2015, 5:15 PM
Location: Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 135 4th Street, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Plan Comm Notices: Mayor Palm, P. Wedekind, D. Thurow, R. Franzen, P.Liston, J. O’Neill, T. Kolb,

K. Fitzwilliams
Others Noticed: T. Pinion, E. Geick, E. Robkin, M. Reitz, Scott Zietlow, Hans Zietlow, Richard Blakeslee,

Todd Halvensleben, Library, and Media.

PETITIONERS OR REPRESENTATIVES MUST BE PRESENT OR SUBJECT WILL NOT BE HEARD BY THE
COMMISSION!

1. Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Approve agenda.
c. Approve October 20th, 2015 meeting minutes.

2. Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for
Commission action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

3. Public Hearing
Request of Kwik Trip, Inc. for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the construction of a Convenience Store
and Fueling Facility to be located at 1330 South Boulevard, Baraboo, Wisconsin.

4. New Business
a. Request of Kwik Trip, Inc. for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the construction of a Convenience Store and

Fueling Facility to be located at 1330 South Boulevard, Baraboo, Wisconsin.

b. Review and approve Site Plan for proposed Kwik Trip Convenience and Fueling Facility at 1330 South Blvd.

c. Review and recommendation concerning proposed amendment to the Zoning Code to include a minimum
time or residency in the definitions for a single-family dwelling and a two-family dwelling – referred from
Common Council.

d. Review and approve, conditionally approve, or reject a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the David A and
Deloris E Leatherberry Living Trust for land in the City’s Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdiction,
located on the west side of CTH A approximately ½ mile north of Crawford Street, in the NE ¼ of the NE
¼ and the NW ¼ of the NE ¼, Section 23, T12N, R6E in the Town of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin.

e. Review and recommendation of GROW Baraboo – 2015 Community and Economic Development Plan
Update as an Amendment to the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

f. Review and approve two Lot Certified Survey Map of Lot 1, Block 2, Rolling Meadows
subdivision plat, being a part of the NW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 30, T12N, R7E, City of
Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin, by Legacy Housing, LLC.

5. Adjournment
Phil Wedekind, Mayor Designee

Agenda prepared byKris Jackson, 355-2730,Ext.309
Agenda Posted by Kris Jackson on November 11, 2015

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that any person who has a qualifying as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at
the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk, 135 4th St., or phone 355-2700, during regular business hours at least 48
hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of, other governmental bodies of the City of Baraboo who are not members of the above
Council, committee, commission or board may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. However, no formal action will be taken by any
governmental body at the above stated meeting, other than the Council, committee, commission, or board identified in the caption of this notice.

FOR INFORMATION ONLY, NOT A NOTICE TO PUBLISH.

Membersnoticedmustnotifythepersonwhoprepared
agenda (seebelow)atleast24 hoursbeforethemeeting
astowhethertheywillnotbeabletoattendthis
meeting.



Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting October 20, 2015

Call to Order –Phil Wedekind called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM.

Roll Call –Present were Phil Wedekind, Dennis Thurow, Roy Franzen, Tom Kolb, Pat Liston and Jim O’Neill. Kate Fitzwilliams
was absent.

Also in attendance were Administrator Geick, Tom Pinion, Mark Reitz, Dave Leatherberry, David and Diana Allaby, Brandon
Dittberner, Todd Halvensleben, Richard Cross, and Jerome Mercer.

Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Wedekind noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Liston to approve the agenda as posted. Motion carried unanimously.
c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Franzen, seconded by Kolb to approve the minutes of the September 15, 2015 meeting.

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Invited to Speak (Anycitizenhastherighttospeakonanyitem ofbusinessthatisontheagendaforCommissionactionifrecognizedby
thepresidingofficer.)–There were no speakers.

New Business
a. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the David A. and Deloris E. Leatherberry Living Trust for land in

the City’s Extraterritorial Plat Approval Jurisdiction, located on the west side of CTH A approximately ½ mile north of
Crawford Street, in the NE¼ of the NE¼ and the NW¼ of the NE¼, Section 23, T12N, R6E in the Town of Baraboo,
Sauk County, Wisconsin – Engineer Pinion said this is a 38-acre (+) that Mr. Leatherberry would like to subdivide a home
site on that property, which the City’s ET allows that to occur as part of the County’s clustering program. They allow a 2-5
acre size, but the City has a maximum 2-acre size, so Leatherberry is proposing a 2-acre lot and then the Preservation Area
Easement would be applied to a minimum of 33-acres or the balance of the property to conform to the County’s regulations.
Richard Cross stated that the CSM has been presented to the Town of Baraboo and County and both have approved it. He
said that the County’s approval is based upon setting aside 30 acres either on the adjoining Lot 1 shown on the CSM or on
property which is a little bit south of that. He said that within one year Leatherberry will have to have approvals with
jurisdictions and the selection of the easement with that. It was moved by List, seconded by Kolb with approve the CSM.
Franzen questioned the placement of the easement. Cross said that the County’s approval is conditioned upon one or the
other position for the easement. Pinion said that although that is the County’s position, the City’s position is that it has to be
contiguous to the lot being divided. Cross asked what the authority for that was. Attorney Reitz said that it is part of the same
land division; therefore, it has to be a part of it. Cross said that in July the Commission granted Pierce an exception for a
different parcel that was not contiguous. Pinion said for that it was contiguous, it is separated by a railroad right-of-way, and
the County’s ordinance does not recognize that as breaking contiguity. Cross said that they are separate parcels. Pinion said
that County’s definition is a parcel is all land under common ownership, regardless of the parcel numbers assigned to it.
Cross asked Pinion if the City was adopting the County’s definition. Pinion answered for the sake of contiguity, the City’s
conflicts with theirs; therefore, the City refers to the County’s definition for contiguity. Cross said that if the County is okay
with Leatherberry having an option for the easement, then apparently it doesn’t conflict with their definition of contiguity.
Pinion said that it does conflict with their definition of contiguity. Cross didn’t agree. Pinion said that the County doesn’t
have a requirement of where the PRD goes; however, the City has a requirement that the CSM and the remnant from which
it is carved be part of that CSM, so it would be very hard to connect a 2-acre lot with a remote 30 or 35-acre parcel that isn’t
part of the same CSM. Cross asked Pinion to define remote and he said not contiguous. Cross asked if this was Pinion’s
position with regard to the enforceability of the Extraterritorial Plat Review. Attorney Reitz answered that this is the way the
City has to do it. Cross said that he knows that Reitz is familiar with the case out in Delevan. Reitz said that is the new one
and didn’t feel it was applicable here; however, if Cross wanted to kick this down and he could sit down with him and talk
about it. Cross said that he would rather get the approval along the line of what the County has approved to get the choice so
that they don’t have to get involved in legal niceties; he asked what the difference is to the City whether or not it is 30 acres
closer to the City or 30-acres farther away. Reitz said because the City does not want that type of cluster developments
suddenly spring up that out of that same 40 acres there are 19 buildable lots, all on 2-acre parcels because separate lands were
set up. Cross said that his understanding of the Delevan case, the City doesn’t have the legal authority to do that, Reitz said
that it could certainly be litigated. Cross said that it may have to be. Cross said that he would like the Commission to
conditionally approve it with the selection of Lot 1, and give his client the opportunity to review his options and see whether
or not he wanted to press forward with it. Reitz said that the motion that is on the table is that it has to be part of this same
CSM, Lot 1. Liston said that he would like to withdraw his motion until Cross and Reitz could settle it. Kolb then withdrew
his second.

b. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey for David J. Allaby’s property, located at 404 10th venue, located on the
northeast corner of the intersection of Crawford Street & 10th Avenue, in the SW¼ of the NE¼, Section 35, T12N, E6E in
the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin –David Allaby, 1505 Parkside Drive, Prairie du Sac introduced himself to the
Commission. Pinion said that Allaby owns the property on the NE corner of Crawford and 10th Avenue and he is proposing
to separate the existing home from the balance of the vacant property. He said the home is reported to be on a ¼-acre lot



and there would be a balance of 1.2 net acres to sell as vacant land. Pinion said the legal description for this property now,
the property goes to the center of the road, so rather than a road by easement, it now will be a road by dedication. So, as a
formality he is formally dedicating the 33-feet of right-of-way that is occupied by the roadway right now. Franzen asked
Allaby why the west property line wasn’t run all the way back to give that homeowner a slightly bigger backyard. Allaby stated
he was hopefully going to use it for a garden. Franzen moved, Thurow seconded to approve the CSM as presented. On roll
call for the motion, Ayes –Thurow, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, Kolb, Wedekind. Nay –0, and the motion carried.

c. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey for the Baraboo National Bank’s property, located on the southeast corner of
the intersection of CHT T (Taft Avenue) and Tillberry Drive, being a Replat of Pleasant View Condominium on Lot 53 of
the First Addition to Pleasant View subdivision, in the SW¼ of the SW¼, Section 30, T12N, R7E, in the City of Baraboo,
Sauk County, Wisconsin–Jerome Mercer appeared on behalf of the Baraboo National Bank. He said that this CSM involves
the condominium plat from ten years ago had a number of units and there are ten that are just vacant land. He said that these
are duplex type condominiums and the property owners of the condominium units want to get rid of the undeveloped units
because it creates problems when trying to finance what to sell because there is a difficulty in financing when there is a
condominium that is almost half undeveloped. He said that the Baraboo National Bank owns the undeveloped land, so they
want it separated so that they can dispose of it. Pinion said that it meets the City’s land division regulations. It was moved by
Liston, seconded by O’Neill to approve the CSM as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes –Franzen, Liston,
O’Neill, Kolb, Wedekind, Thurow. Nay –0, and the motion carried unanimously.

d. Review a concept plan for a proposed residential subdivision plat on the vacant land north and east of the Rolling Meadows
Subdivision for Quality Construction –Brandon Dittberner and Todd Halvensleben introduced themselves to the
Commission. Pinion presented the existing plat of Rolling Meadows to the Commission. He said that Dittberner and
Halvensleben are looking to expand this subdivision. He said that the City’s Land Division Regulations, like most, if a
developer owns more land than they intend to develop, they have to show what is intended for the balance of the land. This
is a conceptual review to make sure the Commission is comfortable with the original layout before they invest in the time and
dollars to take it to a formal Preliminary Plat, and ultimately a Final Plat for Phase II. Liston said that he was Mayor for part
of this and he said that it seems fairly consistent with the original plat; therefore, he sees no problem with it and he feels that
it is a good concept.

Adjournment - It was moved by Franzen and seconded Liston to adjourn at 5:34 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

Phil Wedekind,
Mayor Designee



PLAN COMMISSION ITEM SUMMARY
November 17, 2015

SUBJECT: SUBJECT: REQUEST OF KWIK TRIP FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND SITE
PLAN TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A CONVENIENCE STORE AND FUELING
FACILITY 1330 SOUTH BLVD.

SUMMARY OF ITEMS A & B: Kwik Trip purchased the property on the northeast corner of USH 12 and South Blvd
(CTH W), previously occupied by Black Hawk Home Sales. The property is zoned B-3 and is located within the
Conditional Use Overlay District and is subject to a Conditional Use for the proposed use. They submitted a CUP
Application, Site Plan, and CSM in January 2013 and a revised Site Plan in February 2013, all of which were approved;
however, an underlying deed restriction has prevented from developing the site as intended. Since more than twelve
months have lapsed since their prior approval, they have to start over.

Kwik Trip has submitted their CUP Application and revised site plan for review. The site plan and architectural
elevations of the building are included in the packet. The development includes the installation of two new driveways
onto South Blvd (CTH W), both of which should be full access driveways allowing all four movements (right-in, right-
out, left-in, and left-out).

Since they do not intend to start construction until next year, they are asking for conditional approval of the site plan
pending the review and approval of the Stormwater Management Plan, the Landscaping Plan, and the Site Lighting Plan
by the City Engineer.

COMPLIANCE/NONCOMPLIANCE:
Pursuant to Section 17.37 – ConditionalUseReviewandApproval, I have found the application to be complete and have
reviewed it for compliance with the ordinance.

ACTION: Approve / Deny Conditional Use Permit (with certain conditions?)
ACTION: Approve / Conditionally Approve / Deny Site Plan
______________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING A PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE
ZONING CODE TO INCLUDE A MINIMUM TIME OF RESIDENCY IN THE DEFINITIONS
FOR A SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING AND A TWO-FAMILY DWELLING.

SUMMARY OF ITEM (C): This matter was introduced at our July 21st meeting. An article in the April 2015 issue of
the Municipality identified a common weakness in zoning codes as it relates to a municipality’s ability to regulate short-
term rental homes in single-family residential zoning districts. The Commission directed the City Attorney and me to
draft an amendment to our Zoning Code to restrict the use of single-family dwellings as “vacation homes” and revise the
definition of a residential dwelling accordingly. The revised definition including a 30-day minimum occupancy was
considered at the September 15th meeting and recommended for approval. The Common Coucil referred this matter back
to the Commission to reconsider the minimum occupancy in light of concerns voiced by several property owners that are
renting their properties for short-term tenancies utilizing VRBO and Airbnb to advertise their properties on the internet.

COMPLIANCE/NONCOMPLIANCE: N/A

ACTION: Recommend / not recommend / modify the proposed ordinance revisions.
_____________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND APPROVE A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE DAVID A AND
DELORIS E LEATHERBERRY LIVING TRUST FOR LAND IN THE CITY’S
EXTRATERRITORIAL PLAT APPROVAL JURISDICTION, LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE
OF CTH A APPROXIMATELY ½ MILE NORTH OF CRAWFORD STREET, IN THE NE ¼ OF
THE NE ¼ AND THE NW ¼ OF THE NE ¼, SECTION 23, T12N, R6E IN THE TOWN OF
BARABOO, SAUK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.



SUMMARY OF ITEM (D): Mr. Leatherberry previously proposed subdividing a 2-acre lot from his existing 38.57-
acre parcel on CTH A. Although the City’s minimum lot size regulation in the ETJ area is 20 acres, this land division
could qualify under the Special Exception provision in Section 18.02 (8)(b)(6) of the City’s Subdivision and Platting Code
since provided it meets the following criteria:

 The density of the buildable lots does not exceed 1 per 20 acres
 The new buildable lot does not exceed 2 acres in size
 The land division is by CSM
 Non-buildable lands are enrolled in a Preservation Easement in accordance with the Sauk

County Planned Development (Cluster) Program (all of Lot 1 of the proposed CSM).
Mr. Leatherberry has been working with the Sauk County Conservation, Planning & Zoning Dept and would like to place
the requisite Preservation Easement on a non-contiguous parcel of land he owns, which happens to also be within the
City’s Extraterriortial Plat Approval Jurisdiction. Although the CP&Z Dept reportedly supports Mr. Leatherberry’s plan,
the City contends it needs to be on the contiguous parcel to satisfy the density restriction of no more than 1 buildable lot
per 20 acres. If the requisite Preservation Easement can be remotely located, the 38.57-acre parcel could theoretically
have as many as nineteen (19) 2-acre parcels, a density of almost 10 buildable lots per 20 acres.

Since the CSM has been submitted for review, pursuant to Section 236.34(1)(2) of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the City
has a maximum of 90 days to either approve, approve conditionally, or reject the CSM. Failure to act within the
prescribed 90 days constitutes a “de facto” approval.

COMPLIANCE/NONCOMPLIANCE:
Pursuant to Section 18.02(8)(b)(6) – Minimum LotSizeorParcelsintheCity’sETPlatApprovalJurisdiction, I have
reviewed the CSM for compliance with the ordinance and the lack of the required Preservation Easement on contiguous
land does not meet the maximum density restriction.

ACTION: Approve / Conditionally Approve / Reject CSM
______________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION OF GROW BARABOO – 2015 COMMUNITY AND
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN UPDATE AS AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.

SUMMARY OF ITEM (E): The GROW Baraboo Plan was presented to the Commission at our August 18th meeting by
Greg Wise, the Chair of BEDC and subsequently to the Common Council. A copy of BEDC’s final GROW Baraboo
Plan is included in the packet. This Plan will be considered as an amendment to the City Comprehensive Plan, which was
originally adopted in June 2005. Procedurally, any amendment to our Comprehensive Plan, or any element thereof, must
be initiated by the Plan Commission with a recommendation to approve. A subsequent public hearing with a 30-day
notice is required before the matter can be formally considered by the Common Council.

ACTION: Recommend Approval / Conditional Approval / Reject the GROW Baraboo Plan
______________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBJECT: REVIEW AND APPROVE TWO LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP OF LOT 1, BLOCK 2,
ROLLING MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PLAT, BEING A PART OF THE NW ¼ OF THE SW ¼
OF SECTION 30, T12N, R7E, CITY OF BARABOO, SAUK COUNTY, WISCONSIN, BY
LEGACY HOUSING, LLC.

SUMMARY OF ITEM (F): Legacy Housing, LLC, the prospective developer of the 1st Addition to Rolling Meadows
subdivision is subdividing a 0.77-acre lot on the east side of CTH T (Taft Ave) between 19th and 20th Streets to create two
buildable lots, each with area of approximately 16,700 sq ft.

COMPLIANCE/NONCOMPLIANCE:
Pursuant to Chapter 18 – SubdivisionandPlatting, I have found the CSM to be complete and have reviewed it for
compliance with the ordinance.

ACTION: Approve/Conditionally Approve / Deny the CSM
______________________________________________________________________________________________



Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting September 15, 2015

Call to Order – Phil Wedekind called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM.

Roll Call – Present were Phil Wedekind, Dennis Thurow, Roy Franzen, Tom Kolb, and Kate Fitzwilliams. Pat Liston and Jim
O’Neill were absent.

Also in attendance were Administrator Geick, and Sean McNevin.

Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Wedekind noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Agenda Approval: It was stated that Item c regarding vacating the unimproved portion of Lorna Drive should be taken off

the agenda. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Thurow to approve the agenda with Item c. being removed. Motion carried
unanimously.

c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Franzen to approve the minutes of the August 18, 2015 meeting.
Motion carried unanimously.

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Commission action if recognized by
the presiding officer.) – There were no speakers.

New Business
a. Review and recommendation concerning proposed amendment to the Zoning Code to include a minimum time or residency

in the definitions for a single-family dwelling and a two-family dwelling - After discussion regarding the proposed
amendment to the Zoning Code, it was moved by Thurow, seconded by Kolb to recommend the proposed amendment to
include a minimum time or residency in the definitions for a single-family dwelling and a two-family dwelling. On roll call
vote for the motion, Ayes – Wedekind, Thurow, Kolb. Nay – Franzen, and Fitzwilliams, the motion carried 3-2.

b. Review and recommendation concerning two proposed Special Exceptions to the Sign Code pertaining to off-premise
advertising at the Baraboo School District’s outdoor sporting stadiums and outdoor athletic facilities –Sean McNevin
presented the School District proposal to the Council. McNevin thanks Administrator Geick for bringing the non-
compliance to their attention and provided an avenue for a solution to them. He said that it is this type of collaboration
between the School and the City that works well. He said that the main goal is making sure that all students are career and
college ready. He said that they have partnerships with Flambeau, Teel, St. Clare, Baraboo Awning, Synergy, MSA, BDAS,
Mayor Palm, which was a big part of their strategic planning process, the Boys and Girls Club, they provide transportation
and high-speed internet, Alderman Petty spoke to them about the value of social workers in school, and it is this type of
collaboration that gets them excited, because that is the kind of impact that it has on the curriculum and in the classroom.
McNevin said that about four or five years ago the School Board and WIAA said that the track was in terrible conditions and
event couldn’t be held there; therefore-, between the budget, fund balance, and community members, they stepped up and
spent approximately $900,000 which gave the School District a nine lane track instead of eight, a bigger soccer field, drainage,
crowing, entrance, ticket booth, and a new score board, all that was wanted, but the community wanted the second set of
bleachers and wanted the old bleachers enclosed so that it felt more like a stadium, but the School Board said that they were
done. He said that with that there was about $400,000 worth of project left and the fundraising group had about $100,000
left and they said that they wanted to put the concrete down that would go under the bleachers. The School Board didn’t feel
that they should pour concrete when they didn’t have the other $300,000 raised, but it was their money and they wanted to
prove their commitment to the program. He said that they wanted to show progress to everyone that donated money, and
this is when the marketing class got involved and asked what they could do to help with the projects that were not finished.
He said that obviously the naming rights of the field came up and Flambeau Field was born, a few community sponsors
come forward and they were above to raise $200,000 in two weeks and this is why they totally blew by the consideration of
whether they were violating a City Ordinance, which includes himself and he was part of the City Council when the Sign
Ordinance was approved. He said that the only thing that the District wishes for, other than the Commission’s support of
amendment is a consideration of one from the amendment that gives them a glimmer of hope as a School District. He said
that inside the language of the Special Exemption, the last sentence of the first paragraph states that after these respective
dates, meaning the five years on the upper signs, and the 15 year commitment made with Flambeau, all non-conforming and
prohibitive signs shall be removed. He said that to him this seems pretty final, such as cease and assist at that point, but they
are looking for a glimmer of hope because it was so successful and so well received, they are inquiring if the Commission
would be willing to deliberate and consider adding a clause that states that after those dates that a conditional use permit is
required for the continuation of those and failure to obtain a conditional use permit would require those signs to come down,
that way the control stays with the Commission, and failure to apply for the CUP would also be a reason for the signage to
come down. Wedekind asked who will be doing maintenance on these signs and McNevin answered that the School District
is committed the fabric and maintenance of that. Kolb said that overall he likes the looks of it and felt the Flambeau Field
was clever; he was disappointed that all the advertisement went on the top of it; however, he understood why it was done.
Kolb said that he was thinking if the five years were done, the School District would perhaps be looking at putting the
advertising on the inside rather than the outside, where it isn’t quite as intrusive. McNevin felt that this would be the
appropriate response if they were allowed to come back in five years. Fitzwilliams said that she likes them on top; it shows



that the community is involved with the District, and she is proud that they raised that much money; however, she is in the
business of raising money, and the business of marking places that support the school and the field. Franzen felt that the
naming of the field and having it on the bleachers and T-Birds is totally acceptable, he doesn’t feel that this is signage;
however, when names are run across the top is billboard advertising. He said that he wished that they had followed Park and
Rec’s lead on sponsorship, not calling advertising, but recognizing the sponsors, and by that Don-Rick is a large supporter of
sports; however, they did not allow him to put up his logo. Kolb moved to adopt the changes as stated in the proposed
amendment, Thurow seconded the motion. On roll call for the motion, Ayes – Thurow, Franzen, Kolb, Fitzwilliams,
Wedekind. Nay – 0, and the motion carried.

c. Review and recommendation concerning request to vacate the unimproved portion of the Crestview Drive (formerly Lorna
Drive) right-of-way north of 2nd Street– Removed from the agenda.

Adjournment - It was moved by Franzen and seconded Fitzwilliams to adjourn at 5:40 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

Phil Wedekind,
Mayor Designee



XX

O
H

O
H

& $ & $ 1 <G= F G 3 <E? 5 F GI A " 8 9 / % & %

6C L D F J I A 4 BEE? H F I < ( ( ' ' *
* ) & # & + &# + ' $ $

@<K * ) & # & + & # + ' ' $

829/ 63 ,55250 3 ,5.8-,6/ ,7-129/-9; 7/ 25
-

#

# ()- - '%,"+

#

D4F?=B; F8EI=F8A8BHG

D4F?=B; DFCJ=787
D4F?=B; F8EI=F87

G=78 M4F7
F84F

9FCBH

HCH4@ G=H8 4F842

8L& =AD8FJ=CIG2

DFCDCG87 ;F88B 4F842
DFCDCG87 <4F7 6CJ8F2

5I=@7=B; G8H546?G

5I=@7=B; 4F842
D4J87 4F842

NCB=B; 7=GHF=6H2

G=H8 74H42

5+ <=;<K4M 5IG=B8GG

/1$/)* G9

*-$,.1 G9 +*"

-,$*,+ G9 .0"

,/$(., G9 -1"

/)/1 G9 1"

*-#

*-#

)(#

)')-( 3 *) GH4@@G

*+ GH4@@G

64F K4G<
6CBJ8B=8B68 GHCF8
5I=@7=B; <8=;<HG

*+&-#
),#

64BCDM *(&(#

%

*( GFJ& DBHG

8L& D8FJ=CIG2 %

6CBGHFI6H=CB BCH82

6ZY]^\_Q^WZY TSYQWYU ^Z PS WY]^OXXSR O\Z_YR SY^W\S QZY]^\_Q^WZY ]W^S& 6ZZ\RWYO^S `W^V Z`YS\ TZ\
TSYQWYU OYR UO^S XZQO^WZY] OYR O[[\Z[\WO^S ]WUYOUS WY]^OXXO^WZY&

@4MCIH BCH8G2

)& D@4B DF8D4F87 9FCA 4B 4@H4'46GA @4B7 H=H@8 GIFJ8M 5M2
AG4 DFC98GG=CB4@ G8FJ=68G
74H87 ))'+'*()*

*& 6IF5G 4F8 7=A8BG=CB87 HC 9468 C9 6IF5&

+& 6CBJ8B=8B68 GHCF8$ 64F K4G< 4B7 =G@4B7 6CAD@8L8G 4F8 @C64H87 9FCA H<8
GCIH<84GH DFCD8FHM 6CFB8F 4B7 4@=;B87 D4F4@@8@' D8FD8B7=6I@4F HC H<8 GCIH<
DFCD8FHM @=B8 IB@8GG CH<8FK=G8 =B7=64H87 CB H<=G D@4B&

,& IB@8GG G<CKB CH<8FK=G8 CB H<=G 7F4K=B;$ 6CBHF46HCF G<4@@ DFCJ=78 6CBHFC@
>C=BHG$ 6CBGHFI6H=CB >C=BHG$ 4B7 8LD4BG=CB >C=BHG =B G@45 CB ;F478$ G=78K4@?G 4B7
7F=J8G&
6CBHFC@ >C=BH A4L=AIA 7=GH4B682 K4@?G% 0# C&6&$ 4@@ CH<8FG% )(# C&6& G4K 6IH
6CBHFC@ >C=BHG A=B=AIA CB8%EI4FH8F 6CB6F8H8 H<=6?B8GG&
8LD4BG=CB >C=BH A4L=AIA 7=GH4B682 K4@?G% *,# C&6&$ 4@@ CH<8FG% ,(# C&6& 7CK8@ 4@@
8LD4BG=CB >C=BHG% A4L=AIA *,! C&6&

-& 6CB6F8H8 =B =G@4B7 6CAD@8L G<4@@ 58 GACCH< 9=B=G<87&

.& 8LH8F=CF 6CB6F8H8 GIF9468G HC 58 G84@87& 6CB6F8H8 G84@8F2
4DF )-% C6H +) IG82 H?%*.IJ
BCJ )% 786 +) IG82 H?%*1(

/& 8LD4BG=CB >C=BHG G<4@@ 58 786?%C%9C4A87 4B7 64I@?87 K=H< G@)

IH=@=HM 6CAD4BM =B9CFA4H=CB

;4G' 8@86HF=6% 4@@=4BH 0((%*--%,*.0

6CAAIB=64H=CBG% 6<4FH8F 0..%*(/%+..+

G4B=H4FM$ K4H8F
54F45CC IH=@=H=8G .(0%+--%*/,(













GROW	  BARABOO:	  An	  Economic	  Development	  
Workplan	  for	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  

“You	  can’t	  go	  to	  this	  durable	  Midwestern	  town	  without	  experiencing	  powerful	  moments	  
of	  déjà	  vu	  that	  emerge	  from	  the	  collective	  unconsciousness	  of	  America.”	  	  

–	  Susan	  Spano,	  Smithsonian	  Magazine	  

2015	  Community	  and	  Economic	  Development	  Plan	  Update	  

	  
Baraboo	  Economic	  Development	  
Commission:	  
Greg	  Wise,	  Chair	  
Melanie	  Burgi,	  Vice	  Chair	  
Aural	  Umhoefer,	  Secretary	  
John	  Alt	  
Musa	  Ayer	  
Jim	  Bowers	  
Buddy	  Huffaker	  
Mike	  Palm	  
Sonja	  Stauffacher	  
Dave	  Taylor	  
	  
Baraboo	  Mayor	  and	  Common	  
Council:	  
Mike	  Palm,	  Mayor	  
Joel	  Petty,	  Council	  President	  
John	  Alt	  
John	  Ellington	  
Tom	  Kolb	  
Michael	  Plautz	  
Eugene	  Robkin	  
Scott	  Sloan	  
Dennis	  Thurow	  
Phil	  Wedekind	  
	  
Staff	  
Ed	  Geick,	  City	  Administrator	  
Pat	  Cannon,	  Community	  
Development	  Authority	  Director	  

9	  
135	  Fourth	  Street,	  Baraboo,	  Wisconsin	  53913	  

(608)	  356-‐2700	  
www.cityofbaraboo.com	  

	  

Our	  Vision—	  

The	  Baraboo	  area’s	  long-‐term	  economic	  prosperity	  will	  
be	  founded	  on	  providing	  an	  exceptional	  quality	  of	  life	  for	  
all	  residents,	  which	  includes	  a	  healthy	  business	  climate.	  
As	  Baraboo	  continues	  to	  grow	  and	  advance,	  it	  will	  
protect	  its	  abundant	  natural	  resources	  and	  retain	  the	  
best	  qualities	  of	  its	  small	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
city	  atmosphere.	  The	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
community	  leaders	  will	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
be	  forward	  thinking,	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
fiscally	  responsible,	  and	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
environmentally	  conscious	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
as	  they	  identify	  and	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
address	  critical	  issues	  and	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
opportunities.	  
	  



GROW	  BARABOO:	  An	  Economic	  Development	  Workplan	  for	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  is	  a	  challenge	  
to	  the	  community	  to	  provide	  an	  exceptional	  quality	  of	  life	  to	  our	  residents;	  build	  a	  healthy	  business	  climate;	  protect	  
our	  abundant	  natural	  resources;	  and	  retain	  the	  best	  qualities	  of	  our	  small	  town	  atmosphere.	  	  It	  is	  a	  recognition	  that	  
the	  Baraboo	  Area	  is	  far	  more	  than	  the	  city-‐proper.	  	  The	  economic,	  social,	  and	  environmental	  health	  of	  the	  Baraboo	  
Area	  is	  about	  the	  City	  of	  Baraboo,	  the	  Village	  of	  West	  Baraboo	  and	  the	  Towns	  of	  Baraboo	  and	  Greenfield.	  	  It	  is	  about	  
the	  public,	  non-‐profit	  and	  private	  sectors.	  	  We	  commit	  to	  joining	  with	  our	  neighbors	  to	  plan	  for	  the	  area,	  while	  
acknowledging	  that	  each	  municipality	  and	  the	  businesses	  and	  organizations	  of	  the	  Baraboo	  area	  must	  commit	  
themselves	  to	  implementing	  those	  plans.	  	  
	  
Much	  has	  changed	  in	  the	  Baraboo	  area	  and	  beyond	  since	  the	  previous	  economic	  development	  plan	  was	  adopted	  in	  
2005.	  	  Over	  that	  time,	  the	  area’s	  population	  has	  changed	  dramatically	  and	  make	  up	  of	  the	  firms,	  organizations	  and	  
the	  civic	  fabric	  in	  which	  they	  are	  located	  have	  changed	  as	  well.	  	  This	  planning	  document	  features	  an	  action-‐oriented	  
workplan,	  based	  on	  thoughtful	  planning	  and	  purposeful	  assessment.	  	  You	  will	  find	  those	  influences	  in	  the	  appendices	  
to	  this	  document.	  	  This	  plan	  builds	  on	  the	  2005	  City	  of	  Baraboo	  Comprehensive	  Plan	  (Chapter	  8,	  Economic	  
Development,	  in	  particular),	  the	  2006	  Baraboo	  Riverfront	  Redevelopment	  Area	  Plan,	  the	  2011	  Baraboo	  Retail	  Market	  
Analysis,	  and	  the	  2014	  Baraboo	  Economic	  Development	  Commission’s	  (BEDC)	  Economic	  Development	  Priorities	  
Planning	  Process.	  	  	  
	  
The	  implementation	  of	  this	  plan	  recognizes	  the	  two	  essential	  elements	  of	  the	  BEDC	  Mission:	  

§ To	  provide	  intellect,	  vision,	  and	  advocacy	  for	  community	  development;	  and	  
§ To	  serve	  as	  a	  catalyst	  for	  diverse	  economic	  growth.	  

	  
The	  three	  broad	  plan	  goals	  and	  objectives	  seek	  to	  make	  good	  on	  the	  
strategic	  priorities	  that	  BEDC	  articulated	  after	  a	  2014	  community-‐
wide	  strategic	  assessment—a	  diverse	  regional	  economy;	  broad	  
community	  engagement	  and	  strong	  partnerships;	  a	  unique	  quality	  
of	  place;	  efficient	  and	  innovative	  quality	  public	  services	  and	  
amenities;	  and	  a	  robust	  education	  system	  for	  all	  age	  groups.	  	  
We	  see	  this	  being	  achieved	  by	  dedicating	  ourselves	  to	  
three	  Plan	  Goals	  and	  Objectives:	  

§ Business	  Development:	  Supporting	  and	  
Growing	  Businesses;	  

§ Community	  Development:	  Creating	  a	  Place	  to	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
Visit,	  Live,	  Work,	  and	  Play;	  

§ Redevelopment:	  A	  Commitment	  to	  
Revitalizing	  the	  area.	  	  

Essential	  to	  the	  success	  of	  each	  of	  these	  are	  
robust	  partnerships	  and	  trusted	  collaboration.	  
	  
Each	  of	  these	  Plan	  Goals	  and	  Objectives	  has	  a	  
set	  of	  unique	  strategies;	  some	  of	  those	  
strategies	  address	  a	  single	  goal,	  and	  some	  of	  
them	  address	  two	  or	  more	  goals.	  	  Some	  of	  the	  
strategies	  will	  take	  longer	  to	  put	  in	  place.	  	  Some	  will	  cost	  
more	  in	  terms	  of	  time	  and	  money.	  	  Some	  will	  have	  immediate	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
impacts	  and	  others	  will	  take	  longer	  to	  see	  results.	  	  They	  cannot	  all	  be	  done	  at	  the	  same	  time,	  yet	  they	  all	  have	  merit.	  	  
Finally,	  some	  of	  these	  goals,	  objectives	  and	  strategies	  will	  fade	  and	  new	  ones	  will	  emerge.	  	  This	  is	  plan	  written	  in	  
pencil,	  intended	  to	  be	  malleable	  and	  expected	  to	  change	  as	  our	  local	  conditions	  and	  broader	  economy	  changes.	  	  This	  
agenda	  is	  bold	  and	  ambitious.	  	  There	  is	  a	  lot	  that	  is	  good	  in	  this	  community	  and	  the	  potential	  is	  limitless.	  	  The	  leaders	  
of	  the	  community	  today	  and	  tomorrow	  are	  challenged	  to	  commit	  themselves	  to	  the	  essential	  elements	  of	  this	  plan	  
and	  to	  make	  the	  challenging	  choices	  that	  will	  inevitably	  confront	  them.	  	  	  
	  
Ultimately,	  we	  are	  all	  challenged	  to	  make	  a	  difference	  and	  contribute	  to	  GROW	  BARABOO.	  
	  
	  



GROW	  BARABOO:	  	  
An	  Economic	  Development	  Workplan	  for	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  

	  
BUSINESS	  DEVELOPMENT:	  

SUPPORTING	  AND	  GROWING	  BUSINESSES	  
	  

	  
Enhancing	  Our	  Workforce	  

Committing	  to	  Existing	  
Businesses	  

	  
Developing	  New	  Businesses	  

1. Conduct	  a	  workforce	  
needs	  assessment	  and	  
action	  plan	  

1. Inventory	  businesses,	  
sites	  and	  buildings	  

1. Develop	  and	  distribute	  a	  
Baraboo	  Area-‐specific	  
business	  start-‐up	  guide	  

2. Support	  a	  workforce	  
development	  workgroup	  

2. Conduct	  a	  formal	  business	  
retention	  and	  expansion	  
(BR&E)	  program	  for	  large	  
firms	  

2. Research	  and	  target	  
business	  development	  
opportunities	  

	   3. Conduct	  a	  business	  
visitation	  program	  for	  
small	  firms	  

3. Review	  and	  refine	  the	  
regulatory	  process	  for	  
supporting	  business	  
development	  

	   4. Conduct	  business	  exit	  
interviews	  

	  

	  
The	  new	  economic	  reality	  is	  clear—communities	  that	  take	  care	  of	  their	  existing	  businesses	  maintain	  and	  
generate	  the	  most	  new	  jobs.	  	  In	  fact,	  with	  unemployment	  at	  historic	  lows,	  and	  with	  the	  pending	  retirement	  
of	  many	  in	  the	  baby-‐boom	  generation,	  workers	  are	  at	  a	  premium.	  	  No	  single	  effort	  will	  have	  greater	  return	  
on	  investment	  than	  enhancing	  the	  quality	  and	  quantity	  of	  the	  workforce	  for	  the	  area’s	  existing	  businesses.	  	  
This	  is	  not	  an	  issue	  that	  can	  be	  addressed	  solely	  by	  the	  public	  sector.	  	  Trusted	  partnerships	  and	  robust	  
collaborations	  with	  the	  business,	  pre-‐Kindergarten	  through	  grade	  12	  system,	  the	  Technical	  College,	  and	  the	  
University,	  along	  with	  other	  workforce	  readiness	  organizations	  will	  be	  critical	  to	  assuring	  that	  our	  existing	  
businesses	  can	  thrive	  and	  grow.	  
	  
As	  important	  as	  workforce	  availability	  and	  preparation	  are,	  it	  is	  incumbent	  on	  the	  City	  and	  Village	  and	  Towns	  
to	  be	  vigilant	  about	  the	  needs	  and	  interests	  of	  area	  businesses.	  	  Large	  firms	  should	  be	  regularly	  surveyed	  
and	  visited	  to	  learn	  about	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  communities	  might	  address	  in	  order	  to	  assist	  
them.	  	  Similarly,	  small	  retail	  and	  service	  businesses	  are	  critical	  to	  the	  local	  economy	  and	  the	  vibrancy	  of	  the	  
area.	  	  A	  purposeful	  effort	  to	  reach	  out	  and	  understand	  their	  needs	  and	  interests	  will	  allow	  elected	  and	  
appointed	  officials	  to	  make	  sure	  the	  conditions	  for	  success	  are	  met.	  	  When	  a	  business	  does	  close,	  it	  is	  
important	  to	  learn	  what	  led	  to	  that	  decision	  and	  make	  every	  effort	  to	  understand	  what	  precipitated	  the	  
decision	  and	  correct	  for	  it,	  if	  possible.	  	  It	  may	  be	  the	  simple	  recognition	  of	  a	  call	  or	  visit	  that	  opens	  lines	  of	  
communication	  and	  provides	  assurances	  that	  we	  are	  all	  in	  this	  together.	  	  
	  
Second	  only	  to	  the	  growth	  of	  existing	  businesses,	  entrepreneurship	  is	  an	  important	  element	  to	  maintaining	  
a	  dynamic	  economy.	  	  Helping	  businesses	  navigate	  the	  maze	  of	  rules	  and	  regulations	  and	  offering	  assistance	  
to	  those	  that	  are	  new	  to	  the	  many	  business	  challenges	  can	  help	  to	  move	  an	  idea	  from	  a	  garage	  to	  
Mainstreet.	  	  This	  is	  important	  for	  latent	  entrepreneurs	  and	  there	  is	  also	  a	  role	  for	  communities	  to	  play	  in	  
seeking	  out	  potential	  businesses	  that	  might	  fill	  a	  gap	  in	  the	  market.	  	  There	  is	  no	  reason	  that	  the	  Baraboo	  
area	  cannot	  be	  one	  of	  the	  most	  receptive	  to	  business	  development	  while	  also	  maintaining	  our	  commitment	  
to	  an	  exceptional	  quality	  of	  life.	  
	  



COMMUNITY	  DEVELOPMENT:	  
CREATING	  A	  PLACE	  TO	  VISIT,	  LIVE,	  WORK,	  AND	  PLAY	  

	  
	  

Marketing	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  
Enhancing	  Tourism	  

Development	  
	  

Improving	  Amenities	  
1. Identify	  and	  inventory	  

assets	  
1. Promote	  the	  area	  to	  

visitors	  
1. Maintain	  and	  enhance	  

infrastructure	  and	  parks	  
and	  cultural	  amenities	  

2. Build	  and	  maintain	  a	  
world-‐class	  website	  

2. Strengthen	  the	  linkages	  
between	  the	  community	  
and	  area	  attractions:	  	  
State	  Parks;	  
Environmental	  
Organizations	  (ICF,	  ALF,	  	  
BAAP,	  etc.);	  Historic	  
Downtown;	  River	  Corridor	  

2. Provide	  outstanding	  
access	  to	  contemporary	  
technology	  products	  and	  
services	  	  	  

3. Implement	  and	  maintain	  
a	  contemporary	  social	  
marketing	  effort	  

	   3. Feature	  pedestrian	  and	  
bike	  friendly	  trails,	  and	  
support	  active	  river	  use	  

4. Implement	  a	  new	  resident	  
welcome	  program	  

	   4. Offer	  an	  array	  of	  
affordable	  and	  attractive	  
housing	  options	  

	  
Young	  people	  today	  will	  choose	  where	  they	  want	  to	  live,	  and	  then	  find	  employment	  (Rebecca	  Ryan,	  “Live	  
First,	  Work	  Second”).	  	  Add	  to	  that	  the	  increasing	  opportunities	  for	  telecommuting	  (working	  anyplace),	  and	  
a	  place	  like	  the	  Baraboo	  area,	  with	  wonderful	  recreational	  and	  cultural	  amenities,	  is	  poised	  to	  capitalize.	  	  
Are	  we	  “on	  the	  map”	  and	  “in	  the	  minds”	  of	  those	  looking	  for	  a	  balance	  of	  leisure	  and	  career?	  	  Are	  we	  
committed	  to	  maintaining	  those	  special	  assets	  we	  have	  and	  enhancing	  them?	  	  To	  answer	  “yes”	  we	  must	  
commit	  to	  identifying	  our	  core	  image	  and	  consistently	  marketing	  it.	  	  	  
	  
The	  City,	  Village	  and	  Towns,	  along	  with	  partners	  such	  as	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce,	  need	  to	  
take	  stock	  of	  what	  our	  competitive	  strengths	  are	  and	  be	  unabashed	  in	  our	  efforts	  to	  promote	  the	  area—for	  
visitors	  and	  newcomers	  and	  those	  returning	  after	  adventuring	  somewhere	  else.	  	  When	  our	  visitors	  come,	  
and	  when	  new	  residents	  or	  returnees	  settle,	  are	  we	  doing	  enough	  to	  welcome	  them?	  	  Like	  our	  business	  
community,	  we	  need	  to	  be	  committed	  to	  retaining	  and	  welcoming	  more	  people	  that	  can	  contribute	  to	  the	  
social	  and	  cultural	  richness	  that	  is	  the	  Baraboo	  area.	  
	  
Whether	  a	  visitor	  on	  vacation,	  an	  area	  traveler	  that	  enjoys	  our	  community	  on	  day-‐trips,	  a	  new	  comer,	  or	  a	  
life-‐long	  resident,	  we	  need	  to	  engage	  them	  in	  the	  many	  activities	  and	  opportunities	  to	  enjoy	  our	  
community.	  	  We	  must	  invest	  in	  the	  recreational,	  cultural,	  community,	  business,	  and	  housing	  infrastructure	  
to	  be	  attractive	  to	  those	  with	  many	  other	  choices.	  	  The	  Kiwanis	  Riverwalk	  Trail,	  investments	  in	  river	  access	  
for	  canoes	  and	  kayaks	  like	  that	  in	  Haskin’s	  Park,	  and	  linkages	  to	  the	  Ice	  Age	  Trail	  are	  part	  of	  this	  effort.	  	  
When	  we	  ask	  ourselves	  if	  our	  children,	  or	  grandchildren,	  would	  find	  Baraboo	  a	  satisfying	  community	  in	  
which	  to	  live,	  work,	  and	  play,	  the	  answer	  must	  be	  yes,	  or	  we	  must	  shore	  up	  whatever	  it	  is	  that	  makes	  it	  a	  
no.	  



REDEVELOPMENT:	  
A	  COMMITMENT	  TO	  REVITALIZATION	  

	  
Creating	  a	  South	  

Boulevard	  
Redevelopment	  Plan	  

Creating	  an	  East	  
Entrance	  Corridor	  

Redevelopment	  Plan	  

Creating	  a	  West	  
Entrance	  Corridor	  

Redevelopment	  Plan	  

Enhancing	  the	  
Appearance	  of	  the	  

Area	  
1. Conduct	  a	  

redevelopment	  
study	  (along	  the	  
entire	  corridor)	  

1. Conduct	  a	  
redevelopment	  
study	  (from	  Ash	  
Street	  to	  the	  
community	  
entrance)	  

1. Update	  and	  
refine	  the	  retail	  
market	  study	  to	  
focus	  on	  actively	  
filling	  vacant	  
retail	  and	  service	  
properties	  in	  
West	  Baraboo	  

1. Create	  attractive	  
entrances	  and	  
update	  
community	  
wayfinding	  
signage	  

2. Implement	  a	  
beautification	  
initiative	  
(including	  weed	  
control,	  street	  
tree	  plantings,	  
public	  art	  
placement,	  
nuisance	  
ordinance	  
enforcement,	  
etc.)	  

2. Implement	  a	  
beautification	  
initiative	  
(including	  weed	  
control,	  street	  
tree	  plantings,	  
public	  art	  
placement,	  
nuisance	  
ordinance	  
enforcement,	  
etc.)	  

2. Assess	  the	  
Highway	  12-‐
Highway	  33/136	  
intersection	  and	  
environs	  for	  
opportunities	  for	  
improved	  
functionality	  and	  
aesthetic	  appeal	  

2. Encourage	  
attractive	  
storefronts,	  
signage,	  and	  new	  
façade	  designs	  

	   3. Reassess	  the	  
Utilization	  of	  the	  
Jackson	  Property	  

3. Develop	  
strategies	  to	  
connect	  the	  
traffic	  on	  the	  
bypass	  with	  the	  
businesses	  
located	  at	  this	  
intersection	  and	  
environs	  	  

3. Implement	  a	  
beautification	  
initiative	  
(including	  weed	  
control,	  street	  
tree	  plantings,	  
public	  art	  
placement,	  
nuisance	  
ordinance	  
enforcement,	  
etc.)	  

	  
What	  is	  the	  first	  impression	  we	  offer	  to	  someone	  coming	  to	  town?	  	  If	  you	  had	  a	  choice	  (we	  all	  do),	  would	  
you	  invest	  in	  a	  business	  opportunity	  in	  any	  part	  of	  the	  Baraboo	  area?	  	  When	  you	  take	  visitors	  around	  to	  
show	  off	  the	  area,	  are	  there	  parts	  you	  avoid?	  	  No	  strategy	  to	  Grow	  Baraboo	  is	  complete	  without	  a	  
commitment	  to	  redevelop	  those	  areas	  within	  the	  City,	  Village	  and	  Towns	  that	  have	  challenges.	  
	  
Just	  like	  a	  heartfelt	  greeting	  at	  our	  favorite	  store	  or	  restaurant,	  we	  need	  to	  recommit	  ourselves	  to	  greeting	  
those	  as	  they	  enter	  our	  community.	  	  Some	  redevelopment	  opportunities	  can	  be	  greatly	  improved	  with	  a	  
renewed	  commitment	  to	  aesthetically	  enhancing	  building	  façades,	  signage,	  and	  landscaping.	  	  Some	  
improvements	  require	  the	  public	  to	  invest	  in	  reconstructing	  roads	  and	  trails,	  or	  perhaps	  partnering	  to	  make	  
a	  private	  investment	  viable.	  
	  



Three	  corridors	  that	  deserve	  the	  kind	  of	  attention	  (and	  ultimately	  success)	  that	  the	  Riverfront	  Corridor	  
received	  are	  the	  east	  entrance	  to	  the	  City	  from	  County	  Highway	  T	  to	  Ash	  Street,	  the	  South	  Boulevard	  
Corridor,	  and	  the	  West	  Baraboo	  retail	  and	  service	  hub	  at	  the	  intersection	  (and	  beyond)	  of	  Highway	  12	  and	  
Highway	  33/136.	  	  Some	  of	  the	  efforts	  will	  need	  to	  be	  devoted	  to	  aesthetic	  improvements,	  some	  to	  public	  
infrastructure,	  and	  some	  to	  business	  development	  initiatives.	  	  This	  is	  perhaps	  one	  of	  the	  area’s	  greatest	  
opportunities	  for	  an	  effective	  public-‐private	  partnership.	  	  	  
	  
If	  conditions	  can	  be	  improved	  to	  allow	  for	  greater	  investment	  within	  the	  existing	  business	  corridors,	  the	  
City	  of	  Baraboo	  may	  find	  that	  development	  of	  the	  Jackson	  property	  is	  not	  warranted.	  	  In	  the	  event	  that	  
conditions	  today	  are	  significantly	  different	  than	  at	  the	  time	  of	  the	  property	  acquisition,	  it	  may	  be	  prudent	  
to	  reassess	  that	  opportunity	  and	  instead	  invest	  those	  resources	  into	  redevelopment	  opportunities.	  
	  



GROW	  BARABOO:	  	  
An	  Economic	  Development	  Workplan	  for	  the	  Baraboo	  Area	  

	  
RESOURCING	  THE	  PLAN	  

The	  recommendations	  from	  the	  Baraboo	  Economic	  Development	  Commission	  cover	  three	  key	  areas:	  
Business	  Development,	  Community	  Development,	  and	  Redevelopment.	  Within	  these	  three	  key	  areas	  are	  10	  
Goals	  and	  30	  Objectives.	  The	  objectives	  have	  been	  prioritized	  with	  the	  purpose	  of	  addressing	  our	  most	  
pressing	  needs	  and	  maximizing	  the	  return	  from	  our	  investments.	  The	  objectives	  contain	  either	  
short-‐term	  or	  long-‐term	  activities.	  	  The	  objectives	  are	  also	  identified	  by	  those	  that	  can	  be	  done	  by	  existing	  
municipal	  staff;	  those	  appropriate	  for	  staff,	  but	  which	  will	  require	  more	  time	  than	  existing	  staff	  currently	  
has;	  and	  activities	  that	  may	  be	  most	  effectively	  contracted	  out	  to	  professional	  planners	  and	  economic	  
development	  professionals.	  	  A	  dedicated	  economic	  development	  manager	  might	  be	  housed	  at	  the	  
Chamber	  of	  Commerce,	  coordinating	  with	  other	  City,	  Village	  and	  Town	  officials,	  and	  partners	  at	  the	  
Chamber.	  
	  
Short-‐term	  projects	  
The	  recommendation	  is	  made	  under	  the	  Community	  Development	  and	  Redevelopment	  sections	  that	  it	  is	  
important	  to	  fix	  up	  our	  main	  entry	  ways	  (including	  bringing	  traffic	  from	  the	  bypass	  to	  our	  businesses),	  
improve	  the	  area’s	  aesthetic	  appearance,	  and	  that	  we	  market	  the	  community	  to	  attract	  more	  people	  
(businesses	  and	  employees)	  to	  locate	  here.	  It	  would	  be	  more	  cost	  efficient	  and	  work	  would	  be	  done	  more	  
quickly	  to	  contract	  with	  a	  professional	  consulting	  firm	  for	  this	  work	  than	  to	  add	  municipal	  staff.	  	  This	  would	  
address	  redevelopment	  corridors	  at	  our	  entrances.	  	  The	  cost	  of	  this	  study	  would	  be	  approximately	  $50,000.	  
	  
Under	  the	  Business	  Development	  and	  Community	  Development	  banners,	  there	  are	  a	  number	  of	  items	  that	  
require	  work	  that	  could	  best	  be	  done	  by	  in-‐house	  staff,	  but	  which	  exceed	  the	  capacity	  of	  our	  current	  public	  
employee’s	  workload.	  	  This	  would	  require	  expanding	  the	  investment	  in	  Economic	  Development	  staff	  and	  
related	  costs.	  	  Workforce	  assessment	  and	  development	  needs,	  business	  inventory,	  business	  retention	  
interviews,	  inventorying	  assets,	  and	  maintaining	  the	  web	  site	  and	  social	  media	  campaign	  could	  be	  assigned	  
to	  this	  staff	  person.	  The	  initial	  work	  would	  be	  time	  consuming	  but	  maintaining	  the	  investment	  would	  be	  a	  
lesser	  commitment.	  The	  initial	  estimate	  of	  hours	  required	  amounts	  to	  about	  a	  half-‐time	  person.	  Whether	  
this	  is	  an	  expansion	  of	  the	  hours	  for	  the	  contracted	  CDA	  Director,	  hiring	  someone	  part-‐time	  (including	  the	  
concept	  of	  a	  contract-‐economic	  development	  person),	  or	  an	  Administrative	  Professional	  is	  still	  to	  be	  
determined.	  For	  now,	  it	  is	  recommended	  that	  a	  lead	  person	  for	  an	  economic	  development	  management,	  
be	  hired.	  	  The	  cost	  would	  be	  approximately	  $50,000	  plus	  benefits.	  Supporting	  clerical	  staff	  can	  do	  
maintenance	  on	  web	  sites	  and	  social	  networking.	  	  
	  
Long-‐term	  projects	  
The	  longer	  term	  work	  involves	  implementation	  of	  the	  studies	  done	  on	  the	  entry	  ways,	  the	  marketing	  plan,	  
following	  up	  on	  targeted	  businesses,	  working	  with	  business	  prospects,	  attracting	  new	  talent	  to	  the	  area,	  
following	  up	  other	  better	  linkages	  to	  other	  tourism	  sites	  in	  Sauk	  County,	  and	  working	  with	  local	  business	  to	  
improve	  storefronts.	  This	  work	  will	  require	  the	  economic	  development	  manager	  to	  coordinate	  with	  other	  
departments,	  many	  outside	  entities,	  and	  the	  business	  community.	  	  Existing	  staff	  does	  not	  have	  excess	  
capacity	  (nor	  the	  correct	  expertise)	  to	  successfully	  accomplish	  this	  in	  addition	  to	  their	  current	  
responsibilities.	  	  
	  
Other	  long-‐term	  and	  lower	  priority	  objectives	  like	  inventories	  of	  businesses	  and	  sites,	  conducting	  exit	  
interviews,	  addressing	  broadband	  issues,	  and	  development	  of	  housing	  can	  be	  done	  as	  time	  permits.	  	  It	  is	  
also	  recognized	  that	  priorities	  will	  shift	  over	  time,	  and	  new	  demands	  and	  opportunities	  will	  emerge	  and	  the	  
needs	  the	  capability	  to	  respond	  that	  a	  dedicated	  economic	  development	  professional	  provides.	  
	  



	  

Appendices	  
	  

1. DETAILED	  IMPLEMENTATION	  PLAN	  WITH	  SUPPORTING	  RATIONALE	  
2. COMMUNITY	  PROFILE	  AND	  DEMOGRAPHIC	  AND	  ECONOMIC	  OUTLOOK:	  	  

a. 2015	  UPDATE:	  	  BARABOO	  AREA	  COMMUNITY	  PROFILE	  
b. 2014	  DEMOGRAPHIC	  AND	  ECONOMIC	  OVERVIEW	  FOR	  THE	  BARABOO	  REGION	  

3. 2014	  BEDC	  ECONOMIC	  DEVELOPMENT	  PRIORITIES	  PLANNING	  PROCESS	  REPORT	  
4. 2011	  BARABOO	  RETAIL	  MARKET	  ANALYSIS	  
5. 2006	  BARABOO	  RIVERFRONT	  REDEVELOPMENT	  AREA	  PLAN	  
6. 2005	  CITY	  OF	  BARABOO	  COMPREHENSIVE	  PLAN,	  CHAPTER	  8:	  ECONOMIC	  DEVELOPMENT	  
	  
	  

9-‐‑9-‐‑15	  



P:\Engineering\resolutions\10-13-15 Amend Zoning Code to revise Definition of a Dwelling.docx

Ordinance

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: The Plan Commission recently reviewed the City’s Zoning Code as it pertains to
regulation of short-term rental homes in single-family residential zoning districts. It was discovered
that the current zoning does not regulate this type of use. If the City of Baraboo wants to restrict
the use of single-family dwellings as “vacation homes”, then the definition of a residential dwelling
needs to be modified to include a minimum time period for occupancy.

This topic was discussed at the July 21st Plan Commission meeting and again at their September 15th

meeting. The Commission thought it would be appropriate to regulate this type of use and directed
the City Engineer and City Attorney to draft an appropriate amendment to the Zoning Code.

This matter was reviewed by the Plan Commission at their September 15th meeting and they
unanimously recommended the following change to the Zoning Code.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted Comments:

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DOES
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section Chapter 17.08 (31) is hereby repealed and recreated to read as follows:

17.08 DEFINITIO NS

(31) DWELLING. A detached residential building designed and constructed for human
occupancy that satisfies the following minimum requirements: (1733 05/17/94)

(a) Has a minimum of 864 square feet of habitable floor area.

(b) Has a minimum width along any exterior side elevation of 24 feet for the
principal building and a minimum internal height of 7.5 feet for more than 50
percent (50%) of the living area.

(c) Is firmly fastened to a solid foundation constructed on the site in compliance
with Ch. 14 of this Code and the current ILHR SPS One- and Two-Family
Uniform Dwelling Code with the exterior covering material extending to the
ground, except that when a solid concrete or masonry perimeter foundation is used,
the exterior covering material need not extend below the top of the foundation.

(d) Is connected to the City sewer and waterworks systems.

(e) Is not housing classified as TYPE 1 Manufactured Homes located in a TYPE 1
Manufactured Home Park.

(f) Is occupied by the same tenant(s) for a minimum of 30 consecutive days. Short-
term tenancies at-will or by the week are prohibited.



P:\Engineering\resolutions\10-13-15 Amend Zoning Code to revise Definition of a Dwelling.docx

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

Mayor’s Approval: ________________________

Clerk’s Certification: ________________________

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly passed by the Common Council of
the City of Baraboo on the ____ day of __________, 2015, and is recorded on page ____ of
volume ___.

City Clerk: _________________________



17.08 DEFINITIONS

(31) DWELLING. A detached residential building designed and constructed for human
occupancy that satisfies the following minimum requirements: (1733 05/17/94)

(a) Has a minimum of 864 square feet of habitable floor area.

(b) Has a minimum width along any exterior side elevation of 24 feet for the
principal building and a minimum internal height of 7.5 feet for more than 50
percent (50%) of the living area.

(c) Is firmly fastened to a solid foundation constructed on the site in compliance
with Ch. 14 of this Code and the current ILHR SPS One- and Two-Family
Uniform Dwelling Code with the exterior covering material extending to the
ground, except that when a solid concrete or masonry perimeter foundation is used,
the exterior covering material need not extend below the top of the foundation.

(d) Is connected to the City sewer and waterworks systems.

(e) Is not housing classified as TYPE 1 Manufactured Homes located in a TYPE 1
Manufactured Home Park.

(f) Is occupied by the same tenant(s) for a minimum of 30 consecutive days. Short-
term tenancies at-will or by the week are prohibited.

New Definition:

(101A) TIME SHARE PROPERTY. Any property that is regulated by Chapter 707,
Wisconsin Statutes; and in addition, any real property that is subject to any contract,
lease easement, instrument or other device which requires payment or other
remuneration or barter, for the benefit of the property owner, whereby two or more
families, persons, corporations, firms or entities have an exclusive right to occupy said
property during separate periods of time, with any such right of occupancy having an
actual duration of less than 120 days. Except as regulated by Chapter 707, Wisconsin
Statutes, a contract which is solely intended to provide security or maintenance for the
property while the owner is absent, and whereby the owner receives no compensation
or other benefit other than the security or maintenance, known as a house sitter
contract, is excluded from the definition of time share property.

New Section:

17.17A TIME SHARE PROPERTY RESTRICTED

(1) Time share property, as defined herein, shall be subject to all of the following
requirements:



(a) The property must be owned in such a way, and must include such
uses, so as to subject the property to the regulations of Chapter 707,
Wisconsin Statutes; and

(b) The property must fully and strictly comply with the requirements of
Chapter 707, Wisconsin Statutes, at all times; and

(c) The use shall be subject to a Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning
amendment being granted, and must fully and strictly comply with the
same at all times.

(2) Time share property that does not satisfy the requirements of subsection (1),
above, is prohibited in the R-1, R-1A, R-2, R-3, R-4, and R-5 Residential
Zoning Districts.

ACTION: Recommend / not recommend / make revisions to proposed ordinance revisions
relating to time share property.








